SIRAL AVIATO

Collaborative Trajectory Options Program

CTOP - FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

7/16/2014

Here are key points to keep in mind.

- ▶ The flight operator is responsible for filing the Flight Plan. The TOS is only for planning and TMI development, not for submission of a FLIGHT PLAN.
- ► There is only ONE TOS per flight between a city pair. This one TOS will be used for all CTOP TMI(s) implemented that day
- ► The TOS can be amended as often as the Flight Operator wishes (some exceptions are below)
- Only the Flight Operator who submits a FC message can submit a TOS for that flight for that day.

Contents

1.	Should we resend a TOS with just one route once we file a flight plan with ATC?	. 6
2.	Do MEDEVAC flights get priority over other flights in CTOP?	. 6
3.	What needs to happen if we won't meet our EDCT time?	. 6
4.	What about any FPLs that have been filed?	. 6
5. hap	If we programmatically send a TOS, then file a route before a CTOP program is started, who sens to the TOS and our filed route?	
6. beir	How are routes awarded to the airlines and what in the process kicks off the process of rout gre-awarded?	
7.	When a directional FCA is sent, what information will be provided?	. 6
8. dire	Will these generally be exempting flights to/from a certain FIR and could it exempt routing on ct course or airway, etc? Can you provide examples?	
tran	If you have FEA's with no flight list, will there be conditional direction information that smitted at the same time so we may determine what flights are affected or not affected and so valculate routes appropriately using all the constraints known?	иe
awa	If the system goes down, what assumptions should be made? For example, if an airline worded a route, is it assumed that the award is still valid? Does the CTOP program stop and airlines are le routes like they do now, etc? What is the plan for advising the system and programs are back of the control of th	ire
11.	Is there a time limit before departure when CTOP swaps will no longer be considered/accepted?	. 7

12. Here is a scenario about multiple CTOPs: In Figure 1, we file a TOS LAX to JFK 6 hours before departure, based on a CTOP that was issued. Here is a picture of what we filed (the yellow route was awarded). A couple of hours later, another CTOP is issued that is given a higher rank than the first CTOP. What happens in this situation? Is our awarded route grandfathered into the new CTOP with the

SRAL AVIATO

Collaborative Trajectory Options Program

CTOP - FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

7/16/2014

	e EDCT time? Will we have the same route but take a delay? Are we expected to file a new TOS ng both CTOP into account?
	What if the second CTOP added had a lower ranking than the first CTOP? Are the answers provided we different?
14.	When we are awarded a selection in our TOS, are we awarded the route or the FCA entry time?
(my fligh the the leve KBB give	Here is an example: We filed a TOS with 5 routes. Of the 5 routes, we are awarded the route below first choice) KBBBfix1fix2fix3fix4fix5fix6KCCC This route had an FCA crossing time of 1245 at level 350. The FCA fell between the waypoints of fix2 and fix 3. The dispatcher needs to change route due to weather conditions at the destination. He files a new TOS with 5 routes. He changes route he was awarded by adjusting the routing after the FCA crossing and used the same initial flight I and speed as the previous route which calculated the same FCA crossing of 1245 at flight level 350 Bfix1fix2fix3fix7fix8fix9KCCC Will the fact that we filed a new TOS mean that we potentially up our original selection because we filed a new route even though the FCA crossing did not nege?
	What if the routing changed completely but the FCA crossing time/flight level was still the same ald this just be considered a swap and thus we are awarded our first choice again?
	Page 5 of the ICD V3.1 states that a flight plan filed must "conform" to the CTOP assigned route at does "conform" mean?
	If not, how are airlines supposed to manage routing changes that have no bearing on the FCA sing time?
with TOS airli depa	Is there an advantage to filing a TOS early? For example, 4 airlines each have a flight that leaves in 10 minutes of each other from the same airport arriving at the same airport. Airline 1 has filed a 23 hours ahead of departure time, airline 2 filed an early intent 6 hours ahead of departure time are 3 filed a TOS 4 hours before departure, and airline 4 has a flight plan filed 3 hours before arture. A CTOP is issued 2 hours before departure. In this scenario, is airline 1 given an advantage ause it had a TOS filed 23 hours ahead of time?
20.	What implications are there around the CTOP ranking?10
21.	Should we be concerned about the ranking?10
22.	Does ranking have a potential to affect the routing that we get?
23.	How is the ranking determined? 10
24.	Can the FCAs be directional or not in play when flying to/from certain regions? 10
	How will that (question 24) be conveyed?11
26.	How soon can a TOS be filed?
27	Is there a host practice when a TOS should be filed?



CTOP - FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

7/16/2014

28.	If a CTOP FCA is cancelled, will we receive a delete message?
fligh	If the FCA is changed back to eligible, are there any assumptions to be made, such as the same ats are considered in the CTOP, the times and flight levels are the same, etc? Or will we receive a uplete new set of data? Page 13 of the ICD V 3.0
30.	Page 15 of the ICD V3.0 talks of a conventional required reroute. What is that?
31.	How is the historical route determined when no flight plan, TOS, or early intent is filed?1
fligh	Page 17 of the ICD V3.0 states that a CTOP should be considered active until all the controlled at the landed. Does this require airlines to keep track of all the flights in the CTOP to determine the they have all landed? Will the FAA send out a cancel message to cancel all CTOP?
	Page 17 of the ICD V3.0 states that the TMI revisions only include information about flights that e changed. So if flights are removed from the program, there is a specific entry for this?
34.	Can an FCA/FEA only belong to one CTOP?
35.	Can FCA/FEAs move from one CTOP to another one?
36.	Will the X and Y minutes before and after a slot entry time be published? Page 20 ICD V3.0 12
defi	Page 4 of ICD Ver 3.1 says the flight operator submits TOSs for its long-haul flights. What is you nition of a long-haul flight and should we only send TOSs for those flights under all CTOP programs only for flights in the list or for both?
to p do v	In a slide presentation it states the most recent CTOP program will control. How are we expected alan for this? If a CTOP is in place in the Great Plains and another is then applied to the Ohio Valley we need to send new TOSs for the Ohio Valley CTOP and ignore the original CTOP awards in the at Plains?
39.	How is the start time and end time of the CTOP defined?
40.	Where can I find the scope of a CTOP?
41.	Is there going to be Slot Credit Substitution (SCS) in CTOP?
42.	How are pop-up flights handled in CTOP?13
43.	What route is used to determine if a flight is part of a CTOP?
44.	Does the CTOP feed replace the current FCA/FEA feed we currently use or is it in addition to? 13
	Will there be any duplicate information on these feeds or does the CTOP feed only focus on CTOP (FCA?
46.	How will the FOS send a shutdown message to the TFMS to gracefully shut down the connection?14
	I submit a TOS with 5 routes and I am awarded my first choice. The FCA/FEA changes and I choose esubmit a TOS with my number 1 route (that was awarded to me) and 4 new choices for routes that



CTOP - FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

7/16/2014

	I or won't I? The real question here is that if I resubmit a TOS will that cause me to get a worse te than what I was originally awarded?14
48.	If I have a ship change, do I need to refile a TOS? What about a fleet change?
fligh regio	How do flights get into the flight list that is part of the FCA/FEA? How does time play into what its are added into a flight list? For example, if I historically file a route that traverses a proposed FCA on but it traverses it 30 minutes prior to the proposed FCA effective time, would this route be placed list?
	Is there any difference between the FEA/FCA flight list and the CTOP flight list or is the CTOP flight ust an accumulation of the FCA/FEA flight list that are in that CTOP?
may thou crea	As you may know, we often handle the International portion of a day's flight, while another FPSP handle the domestic leg. Sometimes we will create an FC message for the domestic leg, even ugh we are not computing the flight plan, the other provider is. In the CTOP ICD, it says you must first te an FC before sending in a TOS, otherwise your TOS will be rejected. So the question is, if I create C, will the other provider be able to send in a TOS?
prog senc	Your group often encourages us to file early, especially if going to an airport with a possible gram. With CTOP, we plan to send in our TOS at 8 hours before ETD. We plan to tell the FAA to stop ding reward messages at 3 hours before ETD. So my plan will not be filed until ETD -3. What about se implications?
53.	Will my 'FOS' use the same VPN that I send my current FC messages?
	With flexible swapping, will TFMS consider the trajectory options that either use the other flight's or route out of all CTOP FCAs?15
	Regarding question 55, will it also take advantage of other available slots due to cancellations or a nge in capacity?16
57.	If I swap two flights and a full allocation occurs, how, if at all, is my swap preserved? 16
	Regarding question 57, how would that work if one of the flights was cancelled or routed out ugh a flexible swap?
	Again regarding questions 57 and 58, how would that work if a TOS is updated for one of the flights changes the IAT for that flight?
60.	Are swaps between flights belonging to CTOPS and other FPs allowed?
61.	Flights that have CTL_EXEMPT is TRUE, can we swap their slots with other flights? 17
62.	For flights with CDT is not null/blank and SLOT is 'NO SLOT' or 'EMPTY SLOT', can they be subbed?17
	For flights with CDT is not null/blank and SLOT is 'NO SLOT' or 'EMPTY SLOT', can they be subbed other flights in the program (per subbing rules)?
64.	Is there a Bridge ON/OFF concept for CTOPS?



CTOP - FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

		16/2014
65.	Is there a Slot Hold concept for CTOPS?	18
66.	There is a time difference between SLOT and Earliest FCA arrival time, why?	18
67.	Can a flight have trajectory options that belong to multiple FCAs?	18
68.	Is the CTOPS start time and end time in the FCA_BIN_TIME's first and last entry respectively	? 18



CTOP - Frequently Asked Questions

7/16/2014

1. SHOULD WE RESEND A TOS WITH JUST ONE ROUTE ONCE WE FILE A FLIGHT PLAN WITH ATC?

Answer: This is the choice of the flight operator, if you do not want a change from the route desired, then the TOS should be amended to the single route desired. Any issued/revised CTOP will assign delay only with a single route TOS

Back to Contents

2. DO MEDEVAC FLIGHTS GET PRIORITY OVER OTHER FLIGHTS IN CTOP?

Answer: MEDEVAC flights would require manual coordination for exemption in any TMI.

Back to Contents

3. What needs to happen if we won't meet our EDCT time?

Answer: Request an updated EDCT with the Tower or TCA.

Back to Contents

4. What about any FPLs that have been filed?

Answer: No change from today's operations

Back to Contents

5. IF WE PROGRAMMATICALLY SEND A TOS, THEN FILE A ROUTE BEFORE A CTOP PROGRAM IS STARTED. WHAT HAPPENS TO THE TOS AND OUR FILED ROUTE?

Answer: If the flight is captured in a CTOP program after Flight Plan filing, the flight will be awarded a TOS option that may or may not match the Flight Plan. The awarded route is based on the parameters of the TOS and CTOP capacity. If the awarded route is not the same as the Flight Plan, then the flight operator can refile or wait for the tower to issue the new awarded route.

Back to Contents

6. HOW ARE ROUTES AWARDED TO THE AIRLINES AND WHAT IN THE PROCESS KICKS OFF THE PROCESS OF ROUTES BEING RE-AWARDED?

Answer: TOS award takes place with the issuance or revision of a CTOP TMI, or a TOS is submitted/revised when a CTOP TMI is active. We have published video presentations on CTOP Trajectory Assignment and CTOP Substitutions, they are available at http://tfmlearning.faa.gov/CTOP.html

Back to Contents

7. WHEN A DIRECTIONAL FCA IS SENT, WHAT INFORMATION WILL BE PROVIDED?

Answer: FCA definition will be provided through the CTOP interface.



CTOP - Frequently Asked Questions

7/16/2014

8. WILL THESE GENERALLY BE EXEMPTING FLIGHTS TO/FROM A CERTAIN FIR AND COULD IT EXEMPT ROUTING ON A DIRECT COURSE OR AIRWAY, ETC? CAN YOU PROVIDE EXAMPLES?

Answer: Inclusion of a flight in a FCA is no different with a CTOP than how FCAs are filtered for AFP and Reroutes today. The filtering can be accomplished with a mixture of variables.

Back to Contents

9. IF YOU HAVE FEA'S WITH NO FLIGHT LIST, WILL THERE BE CONDITIONAL DIRECTION INFORMATION THAT IS TRANSMITTED AT THE SAME TIME SO WE MAY DETERMINE WHAT FLIGHTS ARE AFFECTED OR NOT AFFECTED AND SO WE CAN CALCULATE ROUTES APPROPRIATELY USING ALL THE CONSTRAINTS KNOWN?

Answer: All FEA/FCAs that are part of a CTOP will be viewable through the CTOP flight list that is available through the TSD-C client.

Back to Contents

10. IF THE SYSTEM GOES DOWN, WHAT ASSUMPTIONS SHOULD BE MADE? FOR EXAMPLE, IF AN AIRLINE WAS AWARDED A ROUTE, IS IT ASSUMED THAT THE AWARD IS STILL VALID? DOES THE CTOP PROGRAM STOP AND AIRLINES ARE TO FILE ROUTES LIKE THEY DO NOW, ETC? WHAT IS THE PLAN FOR ADVISING THE SYSTEM AND PROGRAMS ARE BACK ON LINE?

Answer: If the TFMS goes down, then the last assigned route and EDCT should be applied. Depending on the outage, the CTOP may need to be reissued or a new program issued. Watch for advisories and telcons to indicate system status and expected TMI application.

Back to Contents

11. Is there a time limit before departure when **CTOP** swaps will no longer be considered/accepted?

Answer: Current lock out for swapping is 45 minutes prior to current Estimated Time of Departure. This is determined by TFMS taking in to consideration, P-time, EDCT, L-times.

Back to Contents



CTOP - Frequently Asked Questions

7/16/2014

12. HERE IS A SCENARIO ABOUT MULTIPLE CTOPS: IN FIGURE 1, WE FILE A TOS LAX TO JFK 6 HOURS BEFORE DEPARTURE, BASED ON A CTOP THAT WAS ISSUED. HERE IS A PICTURE OF WHAT WE FILED (THE YELLOW ROUTE WAS AWARDED). A COUPLE OF HOURS LATER, ANOTHER CTOP IS ISSUED THAT IS GIVEN A HIGHER RANK THAN THE FIRST CTOP. WHAT HAPPENS IN THIS SITUATION? IS OUR AWARDED ROUTE GRANDFATHERED INTO THE NEW CTOP WITH THE SAME EDCT TIME? WILL WE HAVE THE SAME ROUTE BUT TAKE A DELAY? ARE WE EXPECTED TO FILE A NEW TOS TAKING BOTH CTOP INTO ACCOUNT?



Figure 1

Answer: In the example you have drawn, all routes lead through the second CTOP. The flight will be evaluated based on CTOP capacity and awarded a route/delay based on the Adjusted Cost calculation. If the flight is within the exempt time period (i.e. within 45 minutes from departure), then the last awarded route and EDCT will be used. If you want options around the second CTOP to be considered, an updated TOS should be submitted considering both CTOPs.

Back to Contents

13. What if the second CTOP added had a lower ranking than the first CTOP? Are the answers provided above different?

Answer: If the new CTOP is of a lower rank, the flight will remain controlled by the first CTOP and no changes to the current award/EDCT.



CTOP - Frequently Asked Questions

7/16/2014

14. When we are awarded a selection in our **TOS**, are we awarded the route or the **FCA** entry time?

Answer: The award is both route and entry time based on the route.

Back to Contents

Here is an example: We suigh a TOS with 5 politics. Of the 5

THE ROUTE BELOW (MY FIRST CHOICE) KBBB..FIX1..FIX2..FIX3..FIX4..FIX5..FIX6..KCCC THIS ROUTE HAD AN FCA CROSSING TIME OF 1245 AT FLIGHT LEVEL 350. THE FCA FELL BETWEEN THE WAYPOINTS OF FIX2 AND FIX 3. THE DISPATCHER NEEDS TO CHANGE THE ROUTE DUE TO WEATHER CONDITIONS AT THE DESTINATION. HE FILES A NEW TOS WITH 5 ROUTES. HE CHANGES THE ROUTE HE WAS AWARDED BY ADJUSTING THE ROUTING AFTER THE FCA CROSSING AND USED THE SAME INITIAL FLIGHT LEVEL AND SPEED AS THE PREVIOUS ROUTE WHICH CALCULATED THE SAME FCA CROSSING OF 1245 AT FLIGHT LEVEL 350. KBBB..FIX1..FIX2..FIX3..FIX7..FIX8..FIX9..KCCC WILL THE FACT THAT WE FILED A NEW TOS MEAN THAT WE POTENTIALLY GIVE UP OUR ORIGINAL SELECTION BECAUSE WE FILED A NEW ROUTE EVEN THOUGH THE FCA CROSSING DID NOT CHANGE?

Answer: The automation has been designed so that if you update your TOS and the new TOS has the awarded route as one of the options, then you will receive an assignment no worse than the current route.

Back to Contents

16. What if the routing changed completely but the FCA crossing time/flight level was still the same. Would this just be considered a swap and thus we are awarded our first choice again?

Answer: This would not be a swap. If the route awarded/assigned is not part of the TOS, the automation will evaluate all options and select the least cost from the TOS options based on demand/capacity at the time.

Back to Contents

17. PAGE 5 OF THE ICD V3.1 STATES THAT A FLIGHT PLAN FILED MUST "CONFORM" TO THE CTOP ASSIGNED ROUTE. WHAT DOES "CONFORM" MEAN?

Answer: Conformance is between the awarded/assigned route and the filed route. TFMS will insert a protected segment to indicate the TMI route assignment to the controllers. By default the protected segment of a CTOP assigned route will start at the last fix of a SID to the first fix of a STAR.

Back to Contents

18. If not, how are airlines supposed to manage routing changes that have no bearing on the FCA crossing time?

Answer: No change in how you manage routes today.



CTOP - Frequently Asked Questions

7/16/2014

19. IS THERE AN ADVANTAGE TO FILING A TOS EARLY? FOR EXAMPLE, 4 AIRLINES EACH HAVE A FLIGHT THAT LEAVES WITHIN 10 MINUTES OF EACH OTHER FROM THE SAME AIRPORT ARRIVING AT THE SAME AIRPORT. AIRLINE 1 HAS FILED A TOS 23 HOURS AHEAD OF DEPARTURE TIME, AIRLINE 2 FILED AN EARLY INTENT 6 HOURS AHEAD OF DEPARTURE TIME, AIRLINE 3 FILED A TOS 4 HOURS BEFORE DEPARTURE, AND AIRLINE 4 HAS A FLIGHT PLAN FILED 3 HOURS BEFORE DEPARTURE. A CTOP IS ISSUED 2 HOURS BEFORE DEPARTURE. IN THIS SCENARIO, IS AIRLINE 1 GIVEN AN ADVANTAGE BECAUSE IT HAD A TOS FILED 23 HOURS AHEAD OF TIME?

Answer: In this scenario there is no advantage to the airlines/flight operator. As a practice, delay programs are issued for several hours after the start time, i.e. control period is from 1800-0200Z. Under these conditions, the flights that are crossing the FCA(s) 2100z and later that have a TOS will be distributed based on route preference. Flights that submit a TOS after the program is issued, even with an entry time based on historical, will be reassessed for route and delay assignment at TOS submission.

Back to Contents

20. What implications are there around the CTOP ranking?

Answer: Ranking determines which CTOP has priority over another CTOP. A flight can only be controlled by one CTOP or AFP at a time.

Back to Contents

21. Should we be concerned about the ranking?

Answer: Only to determine which one has control of a flight if included in more than one CTOP.

22. Does ranking have a potential to affect the routing that we get?

Answer: Yes, in that a new CTOP could take control of a flight out of an existing CTOP if the new CTOP has a higher ranking.

Back to Contents

23. How is the ranking determined?

Answer: This is determined by the specialist at ATCSCC. This will be done in coordination with the TMIs that are in place or planned.

Back to Contents

24. CAN THE FCAS BE DIRECTIONAL OR NOT IN PLAY WHEN FLYING TO /FROM CERTAIN REGIONS?

Answer: The FCA can be single or bi-directional in the flow of traffic; they could be a polygon and capture flights from all directions. This is determined by the design of the TMI to manage the constraint.



CTOP - Frequently Asked Questions

7/16/2014

25. How will that (question 24) be conveyed?

Answer: This will be communicated as part of the coordination for the CTOP TMI and through the FCA description that is found through the FCA information data.

Back to Contents

26. How soon can a **TOS** be filed?

Answer: Current system limitation is 23 hours prior. The TOS can be filed at any time after that and earlier is better.

Back to Contents

27. IS THERE A BEST PRACTICE WHEN A TOS SHOULD BE FILED?

Answer: The recommendation is to make the TOS filing part of the daily download or in the first Flight Create message. If a CTOP TMI is required, having the TOS information available will provide improved modeling on NAS impact and improve the design of the TMI.

Back to Contents

28. IF A CTOP FCA IS CANCELLED, WILL WE RECEIVE A DELETE MESSAGE?

Answer: Yes, you will receive a message for a cancelation similar to the cancelation of a delay program today.

Back to Contents

29. IF THE FCA IS CHANGED BACK TO ELIGIBLE, ARE THERE ANY ASSUMPTIONS TO BE MADE, SUCH AS THE SAME FLIGHTS ARE CONSIDERED IN THE CTOP, THE TIMES AND FLIGHT LEVELS ARE THE SAME, ETC? OR WILL WE RECEIVE A COMPLETE NEW SET OF DATA? PAGE 13 OF THE ICD V 3.0

Answer: Information on flight inclusion is only for a CTOP based on the included FCAs. The data is only sent during a proposed or actual CTOP TMI based on the FCA(s). If a FCA is removed from a CTOP, then later added back to the CTOP, new data will be sent.

Back to Contents

30. PAGE **15** OF THE **ICD V3.0** TALKS OF A CONVENTIONAL REQUIRED REPOUTE. WHAT IS THAT? Answer: This is an ATCSCC issued reroute by advisory, i.e. Wind routes to JFK, CAN1 East Playbook route, VUZ Playbook route.

Back to Contents

31. How is the historical route determined when no flight plan, **TOS**, or early intent is filed?

Answer: Early intent is based on the most flown route between a city pair over the last 14 days. This is accomplished in the current TFMS to provide FEA/FCA, Monitor Alert, and NAS Monitor demand.



CTOP - Frequently Asked Questions

7/16/2014

32. PAGE 17 OF THE ICD V3.0 STATES THAT A CTOP SHOULD BE CONSIDERED ACTIVE UNTIL ALL THE CONTROLLED FLIGHTS HAVE LANDED. DOES THIS REQUIRE AIRLINES TO KEEP TRACK OF ALL THE FLIGHTS IN THE CTOP TO DETERMINE WHEN THEY HAVE ALL LANDED? WILL THE FAA SEND OUT A CANCEL MESSAGE TO CANCEL ALL CTOP?

Answer: The TFMS will track all flights for a CTOP until they have all landed. There is no automatic cancelation message sent by TFMS, this is only sent by the TMC running the program and is a manual entry.

Back to Contents

33. PAGE **17** OF THE **ICD V3.0** STATES THAT THE **TMI** REVISIONS ONLY INCLUDE INFORMATION ABOUT FLIGHTS THAT HAVE CHANGED. SO IF FLIGHTS ARE REMOVED FROM THE PROGRAM, THERE IS A SPECIFIC ENTRY FOR THIS?

Answer: This would be the DROP OUT message.

Back to Contents

34. CAN AN FCA/FEA ONLY BELONG TO ONE CTOP?

Answer: Yes.

Back to Contents

35. CAN FCA/FEAS MOVE FROM ONE CTOP TO ANOTHER ONE?

Answer: Yes, technically it could, procedurally it would take several steps and program revisions to accomplish this and would be discouraged as flights would transition from controlled to uncontrolled, back to controlled. Not a good way to manage a program.

Back to Contents

36. WILL THE X AND Y MINUTES BEFORE AND AFTER A SLOT ENTRY TIME BE PUBLISHED? PAGE 20 ICD V3.0.

Answer: There are several configurable time parameters in TFMS. We are developing a document that will have the current parameters; however, any of these could be changed by operational needs by direction of the National Operations Manager.

Back to Contents

37. PAGE 4 OF ICD VER 3.1 SAYS THE FLIGHT OPERATOR SUBMITS TOSS FOR ITS LONG-HAUL FLIGHTS. WHAT IS YOUR DEFINITION OF A LONG-HAUL FLIGHT AND SHOULD WE ONLY SEND TOSS FOR THOSE FLIGHTS UNDER ALL CTOP PROGRAMS OR ONLY FOR FLIGHTS IN THE LIST OR FOR BOTH?

Answer: A TOS should be submitted for all flights as early as possible. If there is not a CTOP TMI, then least cost route option will be used as an early intent message for TFMS demand modeling, replacing the historical route. A long-haul flight does not have a hard definition; it is operationally referred to as a flight that typically has more than a 3 hour ETE, or typically longer than 1000 miles between city pairs. The reference to a long-haul flight has no application in the automation; it is referred to during discussions on the planning telcons to help determine when a TMI needs to be implemented to capture the appropriate flights.

STRAL AVIATED STRAIGHT

Collaborative Trajectory Options Program

CTOP - Frequently Asked Questions

7/16/2014

Back to Contents

38. In a slide presentation it states the most recent CTOP program will control. How are we expected to plan for this? If a CTOP is in place in the Great Plains and another is then applied to the Ohio Valley do we need to send new TOSs for the Ohio Valley CTOP and ignore the original CTOP awards in the Great Plains?

Answer: You can only be included in one CTOP TMI, even if you have transitioned past the controlling CTOP location.

Back to Contents

39. How is the start time and end time of the CTOP defined?

Answer: ADVZY will show earliest controlled time from all FCAs in the CTOP.

<u>Back to Contents</u>

40. Where can I find the scope of a CTOP?

Answer: The Scope is defined by the filtering of the FCA(s) in the CTOP.

Back to Contents

41. IS THERE GOING TO BE SLOT CREDIT SUBSTITUTION (SCS) IN CTOP?

Answer: SCS does not exist in CTOP.

Back to Contents

42. How are pop-up flights handled in CTOP?

Answer: Pop-ups are flights that enter the constraint after the issuance of the CTOP.

<u>Back to Contents</u>

43. What route is used to determine if a flight is part of a CTOP?

Answer: Below is the TFMS <u>demand modeling order</u> for inclusion in a CTOP and route conformance monitoring (highest to lowest application order):

- 1. Filed flight plan (used only if a TOS is not supplied)
- 2. CTOP assigned route (route conformance monitoring)
- 3. Early Intent route
- 4. CTOP TOS least-cost route
- 5. Early Intent less than 4 hours from P-time (wind intent)
- 6. Historical reroute

Reroute Monitor Conformance is done on all assigned routes (CTOP and Required) as defined by the protected segment of an assigned route. The ATCSCC will provide direction for route assignment when there are conflicting TMIs.

Back to Contents

44. Does the CTOP feed replace the current FCA/FEA feed we currently use or is it in addition to?

Answer: No, it is an additional feed only on FCA associated with CTOP



CTOP - Frequently Asked Questions

7/16/2014

Back to Contents

45. WILL THERE BE ANY DUPLICATE INFORMATION ON THESE FEEDS OR DOES THE **CTOP** FEED ONLY FOCUS ON **CTOP FEA/FCA?**

Answer: Possibly; the CTOP feed will focus only on FEA/FCA data that is part of a CTOP TMI.

<u>Back to Contents</u>

46. How will the **FOS** send a shutdown message to the **TFMS** to gracefully shut down the connection?

Answer: The shutdown of a connection is your process, there is no message required to be sent into TFMS prior to shutting down a connection. When the socket connection is started back up, it will require initialization message as a new session.

Back to Contents

47. I SUBMIT A TOS WITH 5 ROUTES AND I AM AWARDED MY FIRST CHOICE. THE FCA/FEA CHANGES AND I CHOOSE TO RESUBMIT A TOS WITH MY NUMBER 1 ROUTE (THAT WAS AWARDED TO ME) AND 4 NEW CHOICES FOR ROUTES THAT ARE PRODUCED USING THE NEW FCA/FEA INFORMATION. WILL I STILL BE AWARDED MY #1 ROUTE? IN WHAT CASES WILL I OR WON'T I? THE REAL QUESTION HERE IS THAT IF I RESUBMIT A TOS WILL THAT CAUSE ME TO GET A WORSE ROUTE THAN WHAT I WAS ORIGINALLY AWARDED?

Answer: As long as your replacement TOS has the awarded route assignment included, you will not be awarded a route any worse that current assignment. You could receive a better route based on the Adjusted Cost calculation.

Back to Contents

- **48. IF I HAVE A SHIP CHANGE, DO I NEED TO REFILE A TOS? WHAT ABOUT A FLEET CHANGE?**Answer: Assuming that a ship change is a call sign change, then a FM message is required.

 Back to Contents
- **49.** How do flights get into the flight list that is part of the FCA/FEA? How does time play into what flights are added into a flight list? For example, if I historically file a route that traverses a proposed FCA region but it traverses it 30 minutes prior to the proposed FCA effective time, would this route be placed in the list?

Answer: Inclusion in a FCA is defined through the filters by the specialist creating the FCA, this includes a start and end time. If the flights historical trajectory will intersect with the FCA prior to the start time of the FCA, then the flight is not included in the flight list, FCA demand, or CTOP.

Back to Contents

50. IS THERE ANY DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE **FEA/FCA** FLIGHT LIST AND THE **CTOP** FLIGHT LIST OR IS THE **CTOP** FLIGHT LIST JUST AN ACCUMULATION OF THE **FCA/FEA** FLIGHT LIST THAT ARE IN THAT **CTOP**?



CTOP - Frequently Asked Questions

7/16/2014

Answer: The base flight list is defined by the FCA for CTOP. The flights with assigned routes/EDCT are defined by the parameters of the CTOP program which will be a subset of the FCA.

Back to Contents

51. As you may know, we often handle the International portion of a day's flight, while another FPSP may handle the domestic leg. Sometimes we will create an FC message for the domestic leg, even though we are not computing the flight plan, the other provider is. In the CTOP ICD, it says you must first create an FC before sending in a TOS, otherwise your TOS will be rejected. So the question is, if I create an FC, will the other provider be able to send in a TOS?

Answer: No, only the creator of the FC message will have rights to make modifications, submit TOS, or sub the flight.

Back to Contents

52. YOUR GROUP OFTEN ENCOURAGES US TO FILE EARLY, ESPECIALLY IF GOING TO AN AIRPORT WITH A POSSIBLE PROGRAM. WITH CTOP, WE PLAN TO SEND IN OUR TOS AT 8 HOURS BEFORE ETD. WE PLAN TO TELL THE FAA TO STOP SENDING REWARD MESSAGES AT 3 HOURS BEFORE ETD. SO MY PLAN WILL NOT BE FILED UNTIL ETD -3. WHAT ABOUT THOSE IMPLICATIONS?

Answer: This may limit the opportunities for improvement of your route with any program revisions. The recommended method for locking down your TOS is to update/resubmit a single line TOS with the awarded route. If there is no CTOP and you have a TOS with multiple trajectories, it is recommended to update the TOS to the desired route to prevent a new program from assigning a route other than the flight planned route. If you have only one route, any program issuance or revision will only assign delay to the flight to meet the program rate.

Back to Contents

53. WILL MY 'FOS' USE THE SAME VPN THAT I SEND MY CURRENT FC MESSAGES?

Answer: This does not require a new VPN connection; it will require a new IP address connection.

Back to Contents

55. WITH FLEXIBLE SWAPPING, WILL **TFMS** CONSIDER THE TRAJECTORY OPTIONS THAT EITHER USE THE OTHER FLIGHT'S SLOT OR ROUTE OUT OF ALL **CTOP FCAs?**

Answer: In a flexible substitution, a flight may either:

- Use the slot it is being subbed into,
- Use a route that spatially avoids all the FCAs of the CTOP and will therefore be allowed to depart at its undelayed departure time (I'm guessing this is what your think of as a route out),
- Use a route and departure time that will result in the flight crossing its Primary FCA during a non-controlled time period.

SRAL AVIATION STRAIG

Collaborative Trajectory Options Program

CTOP - Frequently Asked Questions

7/16/2014

The option chosen is whichever option results in the lowest total adjusted cost (TOS option RTC plus TOS option required delay). Two examples in which the third option is selected are as follows:

- 1) Using a particular TOS option route and the flight's undelayed departure time the flight crosses its primary FCA outside the controlled time period.
- 2) Using a particular TOS option route and a delayed departure time so that the flight crosses its primary FCA after the end of the controlled time period (and this option is also the lowest adjusted cost).

Back to Contents

56. REGARDING QUESTION **55,** WILL IT ALSO TAKE ADVANTAGE OF OTHER AVAILABLE SLOTS DUE TO CANCELLATIONS OR A CHANGE IN CAPACITY?

Answer: No, slots that were never allocated or slots that become available since the last full allocation due to flight cancelations, for example, are not made available to a flight being subbed. Slots that become available due to an increase in capacity are only used in the context of a full allocation event (i.e. the TMC must perform an action that will make those slots be used through performing a full allocation).

If a Flight Operator wants to try for an improved departure time or route assignment through other available slots, they would submit a new TOS (could be the same TOS options) to prompt an active CTOP trajectory allocation. An active CTOP trajectory assignment will evaluate any unused slots and the slot the flight currently owns.

NOTE: After the active CTOP trajectory assignment, any previously owned slot is no longer owned by this flight. It receives a new slot assignment (or either an actual slot or a NOSLOT assignment). It is therefore a wise strategy to always include the flight's existing assigned trajectory in any newly submitted TOS for a flight in an active CTOP so that the flight does no worse than the adjusted cost of its current assignment.

Back to Contents

57. IF I SWAP TWO FLIGHTS AND A FULL ALLOCATION OCCURS, HOW, IF AT ALL, IS MY SWAP PRESERVED?

Answer: Through the exchange of the flights' IATs as part of the substitution processing. During the subsequent full allocations, the flights will have the opposite IAT order. This does not ensure that the flights get the same slots just that each flight is chosen in the relative allocation order that the flight whose slot they received would have had without the substitution event.

Back to Contents

58. REGARDING QUESTION 57, HOW WOULD THAT WORK IF ONE OF THE FLIGHTS WAS CANCELLED OR ROUTED OUT THROUGH A FLEXIBLE SWAP?

Answer: IATs are frozen at the time that a flight is first included in an active CTOP. So, once two flights exchange IATs they are fixed until either:

• The flight is no longer part of the CTOP flight set (i.e. a dropout) or



CTOP - Frequently Asked Questions

7/16/2014

• It exchanges its IAT in another substitution event.

Since airlines currently have incentive to not lose valuable slots, the associated desirable IATs should be following their subbing actions. For example, if they are going to cancel a flight, they will perform all the subbing needed to transfer the maximum possible delay from other flights to that flight and before they cancel it. In the process of performing those substitutions, the least desirable IAT should move to the canceled flight.

Back to Contents

59. AGAIN REGARDING QUESTIONS 57 AND 58, HOW WOULD THAT WORK IF A TOS IS UPDATED FOR ONE OF THE FLIGHTS AND CHANGES THE IAT FOR THAT FLIGHT?

Answer: IATs for flights within CTOPs are not updated due to new TOS data unless the new data makes the flight a pop-up in that CTOP. An airline could "delete" its IAT by removing the flight from the CTOP with revised flight/TOS data and then re-enter the CTOP as a pop-up with new flight/TOs data. But that strategy has potential penalties of losing a currently assigned slot and the incursion of the IAT pop-up penalty if the action occurs to close to the flight's departure time.

Back to Contents

60. Are swaps between flights belonging to CTOPS and other FPs allowed?

Answer: Flights that are swapped must all be controlled by the same CTOP. They do not have to be controlled by the same FCAs within the CTOP, but the flights must have a TOS option available that can make the FCAs/slots.

Back to Contents

61. FLIGHTS THAT HAVE CTL_EXEMPT IS TRUE, CAN WE SWAP THEIR SLOTS WITH OTHER FLIGHTS?

Answer: Yes. If they are exempt by time (minutes from and ETD), they may lose the exempt status. The flights must have assigned slot in this CTOP or a NOSLOT. Also, an Active Flight will be CTL_EXEMPT TRUE but is unable to sub.

Back to Contents

62. FOR FLIGHTS WITH CDT IS NOT NULL/BLANK AND SLOT IS 'NO SLOT' OR 'EMPTY SLOT', CAN THEY BE SUBBED?

Answer: An EMPTY Slot cannot be subbed. But flights with a >NO SLOT< can be subbed.

Back to Contents

63. FOR FLIGHTS WITH CDT IS NOT NULL/BLANK AND SLOT IS 'NO SLOT' OR 'EMPTY SLOT', CAN THEY BE SUBBED WITH OTHER FLIGHTS IN THE PROGRAM (PER SUBBING RULES)?

Answer: See 62 above. All flights subbed must be controlled (by Route at a minimum) with a Slot to be subbed, not an Empty Slot.



CTOP - Frequently Asked Questions

7/16/2014

Back to Contents

64. IS THERE A BRIDGE ON/OFF CONCEPT FOR CTOPS?

Answer: No, there is not, as there is no Adaptive Compression or SCS in CTOP.

Back to Contents

65. IS THERE A SLOT HOLD CONCEPT FOR CTOPS?

Answer: No, there is no Slot Hold concept for CTOPs either. Airlines do not receive credit for canceled flights.

Back to Contents

66. THERE IS A TIME DIFFERENCE BETWEEN SLOT AND EARLIEST FCA ARRIVAL TIME, WHY?

Answer: The Earliest FCA arrival and the slot may not always be the same time. This is also true for AFPS (exempt flights). There are a couple of reasons for this. One may be the flight is exempt. In this case, the flight may receive the first available slot that it can meet, but since it's exempt, it does not receive any delay. Another reason is that in CTOP, when it looks at slots, it looks at a slot 'window' (start/end time), so that if a flight falls within the window, it will receive the slot, thought it may not make the front end of the slot (this is also dependent on rates set within the CTOP).

Back to Contents

67. CAN A FLIGHT HAVE TRAJECTORY OPTIONS THAT BELONG TO MULTIPLE FCAS?

Answer: If there are multiple FCAs in the CTOP, and for some reason a TOS will intersect 2 FCAs within a CTOP, then yes this may happen. The flight will only be controlled by the primary FCA (the one it intersects first), and will be exempt in the other FCA since it's considered a secondary FCA. The flight will not have to meet the restrictions of both.

Back to Contents

68. IS THE CTOPS START TIME AND END TIME IN THE FCA_BIN_TIME'S FIRST AND LAST ENTRY RESPECTIVELY?

Answer: If there are multiple FCAs in the CTOP, then the start time is the earliest controlled bin of all the FCAs and the end time is the latest controlled bin across all the FCAs in the CTOP.